

1           **SECTION 749.** 165.85 (3m) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

2           165.85 (3m) (a) As provided in a memorandum of understanding entered into  
3 with the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families under s.  
4 49.857, refuse certification to an individual who applies for certification under this  
5 section, refuse recertification to an individual certified under this section or decertify  
6 an individual certified under this section if the individual fails to pay court-ordered  
7 payments of child or family support, maintenance, birth expenses, medical expenses  
8 or other expenses related to the support of a child or former spouse or if the individual  
9 fails to comply, after appropriate notice, with a subpoena or warrant issued by the  
10 department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families or a county child  
11 support agency under s. 59.53 (5) and related to paternity or child support  
12 proceedings.

13           **SECTION 750.** 165.85 (3m) (b) 1. of the statutes is amended to read:

14           165.85 (3m) (b) 1. Request that an individual provide the board with his or her  
15 social security number when he or she applies for certification or recertification  
16 under this section. Except as provided in subd. 2., if an individual who is requested  
17 by the board to provide his or her social security number under this paragraph does  
18 not comply with the board's request, the board shall deny the individual's application  
19 for certification or recertification. The board may disclose a social security number  
20 provided by an individual under this paragraph only to the department of ~~workforce~~  
21 ~~development~~ children and families as provided in a memorandum of understanding  
22 entered into with the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families  
23 under s. 49.857.

24           **SECTION 751.** 165.85 (3m) (b) 2. of the statutes is amended to read:

1           165.85 (3m) (b) 2. As a condition of applying for certification or recertification,  
2 an individual who does not have a social security number shall submit a statement  
3 made or subscribed under oath or affirmation to the board that he or she does not  
4 have a social security number. The form of the statement shall be prescribed by the  
5 department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families. A certification or  
6 recertification issued in reliance on a false statement submitted under this  
7 subdivision is invalid.

8           **SECTION 752.** 169.34 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

9           169.34 (2) DISCLOSURE OF SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBERS. The department of natural  
10 resources may not disclose any social security numbers received under sub. (1) to any  
11 person except to the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families for  
12 the sole purpose of administering s. 49.22.

13           **SECTION 753.** 169.34 (3) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

14           169.34 (3) (a) As provided in the memorandum of understanding required  
15 under s. 49.857 (2), the department of natural resources shall deny an application  
16 to issue or renew, to suspend if already issued, or to otherwise withhold or restrict  
17 a license issued under this chapter if the applicant for or the holder of the license is  
18 delinquent in making court-ordered payments of child or family support,  
19 maintenance, birth expenses, medical expenses, or other expenses related to the  
20 support of a child or former spouse or if the applicant or holder fails to comply with  
21 a subpoena or warrant issued by the department of ~~workforce development~~ children  
22 and families or a county child support agency under s. 59.53 (5) and relating to  
23 paternity or child support proceedings.

24           **SECTION 754.** 170.12 (3m) (a) 1m. of the statutes is amended to read:

1           170.12 (3m) (a) 1m. If the applicant is an individual and does not have a social  
2 security number, a statement made or subscribed under oath or affirmation that the  
3 applicant does not have a social security number. The form of the statement shall  
4 be prescribed by the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families. A  
5 permit issued in reliance upon a false statement submitted under this subdivision  
6 is invalid.

7           **SECTION 755.** 170.12 (3m) (b) 2. of the statutes is amended to read:

8           170.12 (3m) (b) 2. The board may disclose information under par. (a) 1. or 2.  
9 to the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families in accordance  
10 with a memorandum of understanding under s. 49.857.

11           **SECTION 756.** 170.12 (8) (b) 1. c. of the statutes is amended to read:

12           170.12 (8) (b) 1. c. In the case of a permit holder who is an individual, the  
13 applicant fails to provide his or her social security number, fails to comply, after  
14 appropriate notice, with a subpoena or warrant that is issued by the department of  
15 ~~workforce development~~ children and families or a county child support agency under  
16 s. 59.53 (5) and that is related to paternity or child support proceedings or the  
17 applicant is delinquent in making court-ordered payments of child or family  
18 support, maintenance, birth expenses, medical expenses or other expenses related  
19 to the support of a child or former spouse, as provided in a memorandum of  
20 understanding entered into under s. 49.857. An applicant whose renewal  
21 application is denied under this subd. 1. c. is entitled to a notice and hearing under  
22 s. 49.857 but is not entitled to any other hearing under this section.

23           **SECTION 757.** 170.12 (8) (b) 2. of the statutes is amended to read:

24           170.12 (8) (b) 2. The board shall restrict or suspend a permit issued under this  
25 section if the board finds that, in the case of a permit holder who is an individual, the

1 permit holder fails to comply, after appropriate notice, with a subpoena or warrant  
2 that is issued by the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families or  
3 a county child support agency under s. 59.53 (5) and that is related to paternity or  
4 child support proceedings or the permit holder is delinquent in making  
5 court-ordered payments of child or family support, maintenance, birth expenses,  
6 medical expenses or other expenses related to the support of a child or former spouse,  
7 as provided in a memorandum of understanding entered into under s. 49.857. A  
8 permit holder whose permit is restricted or suspended under this subdivision is  
9 entitled to a notice and hearing under s. 49.857 but is not entitled to any other  
10 hearing under this section.

11 **SECTION 758.** 177.265 (1) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

12 177.265 (1) (intro.) At least quarterly, the department of ~~workforce~~  
13 ~~development~~ children and families shall reimburse the administrator, based on  
14 information provided by the administrator, for all of the following:

15 **SECTION 759.** 196.218 (5) (d) 2. of the statutes is amended to read:

16 196.218 (5) (d) 2. The commission shall annually provide information booklets  
17 to all Wisconsin ~~works~~ Works agencies that describe the current assistance from the  
18 universal service fund that is available to low-income individuals who are served by  
19 the Wisconsin ~~works~~ Works agencies, including a description of how such individuals  
20 may obtain such assistance. The department of ~~workforce development~~ children and  
21 families shall assist the commission in identifying the Wisconsin ~~works~~ Works  
22 agencies to which the commission is required to submit the information required  
23 under this subdivision.

24 **SECTION 760.** 217.05 (1m) (b) 2. of the statutes is amended to read:

1           217.05 (1m) (b) 2. The division may disclose information under par. (a) 1. to the  
2 department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families in accordance with a  
3 memorandum of understanding under s. 49.857.

4           **SECTION 761.** 217.05 (1m) (c) 1. of the statutes is amended to read:

5           217.05 (1m) (c) 1. If an applicant who is an individual does not have a social  
6 security number, the applicant, as a condition of applying for or applying to renew  
7 a license, shall submit a statement made or subscribed under oath or affirmation to  
8 the division that the applicant does not have a social security number. The form of  
9 the statement shall be prescribed by the department of ~~workforce development~~  
10 children and families.

11           **SECTION 762.** 217.06 (6) of the statutes is amended to read:

12           217.06 (6) If the applicant is an individual, the applicant has not failed to  
13 comply, after appropriate notice, with a subpoena or warrant issued by the  
14 department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families or a county child  
15 support agency under s. 59.53 (5) and related to paternity or child support  
16 proceedings and is not delinquent in making court-ordered payments of child or  
17 family support, maintenance, birth expenses, medical expenses or other expenses  
18 related to the support of a child or former spouse, as provided in a memorandum of  
19 understanding entered into under s. 49.857.

20           **SECTION 763.** 217.09 (1m) of the statutes is amended to read:

21           217.09 (1m) The division shall restrict or suspend any license issued under this  
22 chapter to an individual, if the individual fails to comply, after appropriate notice,  
23 with a subpoena or warrant issued by the department of ~~workforce development~~  
24 children and families or a county child support agency under s. 59.53 (5) and related  
25 to paternity or child support proceedings or is delinquent in making court-ordered

1 payments of child or family support, maintenance, birth expenses, medical expenses  
2 or other expenses related to the support of a child or former spouse, as provided in  
3 a memorandum of understanding entered into under s. 49.857. A licensee whose  
4 license is restricted or suspended under this subsection is entitled to a notice and  
5 hearing only as provided in a memorandum of understanding entered into under s.  
6 49.857 and is not entitled to any other notice or hearing under this chapter.

7 **SECTION 764.** 218.0114 (20) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

8 218.0114 (20) (c) An applicant or licensee furnishing information under par. (a)  
9 may designate the information as a trade secret, as defined in s. 134.90 (1) (c), or as  
10 confidential business information. The licensor shall notify the applicant or licensee  
11 providing the information 15 days before any information designated as a trade  
12 secret or as confidential business information is disclosed to the legislature, a state  
13 agency, as defined in s. 13.62 (2), a local governmental unit, as defined in s. 605.01  
14 (1), or any other person. The applicant or licensee furnishing the information may  
15 seek a court order limiting or prohibiting the disclosure, in which case the court shall  
16 weigh the need for confidentiality of the information against the public interest in  
17 the disclosure. A designation under this paragraph does not prohibit the disclosure  
18 of a person's name or address, of the name or address of a person's employer or of  
19 financial information that relates to a person when requested under s. 49.22 (2m) by  
20 the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families or a county child  
21 support agency under s. 59.53 (5).

22 **SECTION 765.** 218.0114 (21e) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

23 218.0114 (21e) (a) In addition to any other information required under this  
24 section and except as provided in par. (c), an application by an individual for the  
25 issuance or renewal of a license described in sub. (14) shall include the individual's

1 social security number and an application by a person who is not an individual for  
2 the issuance or renewal of a license described in sub. (14) (a), (b), (c) or (e) shall  
3 include the person's federal employer identification number. The licensor may not  
4 disclose any information received under this paragraph to any person except the  
5 department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families for purposes of  
6 administering s. 49.22 or the department of revenue for the sole purpose of  
7 requesting certifications under s. 73.0301.

8 **SECTION 766.** 218.0114 (21e) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

9 218.0114 (21e) (c) If an applicant for the issuance or renewal of a license  
10 described in sub. (14) is an individual who does not have a social security number,  
11 the applicant, as a condition of applying for or applying to renew the license, shall  
12 submit a statement made or subscribed under oath or affirmation to the licensor that  
13 the applicant does not have a social security number. The form of the statement shall  
14 be prescribed by the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families.  
15 Any license issued or renewed in reliance upon a false statement submitted by an  
16 applicant under this paragraph is invalid.

17 **SECTION 767.** 218.0114 (21g) (b) 2. of the statutes is amended to read:

18 218.0114 (21g) (b) 2. The licensor may disclose information under par. (a) 1. to  
19 the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families in accordance with  
20 a memorandum of understanding under s. 49.857.

21 **SECTION 768.** 218.0114 (21g) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

22 218.0114 (21g) (c) If an applicant for the issuance or renewal of a license  
23 described in sub. (16) is an individual who does not have a social security number,  
24 the applicant, as a condition of applying for or applying to renew the license, shall  
25 submit a statement made or subscribed under oath or affirmation to the licensor that

1 the applicant does not have a social security number. The form of the statement shall  
2 be prescribed by the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families.  
3 Any license issued or renewed in reliance upon a false statement submitted by an  
4 applicant under this paragraph is invalid.

5 **SECTION 769.** 218.0116 (1g) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

6 218.0116 (1g) (a) A license described in s. 218.0114 (14) shall be denied,  
7 restricted, limited or suspended if the applicant or licensee is an individual who fails  
8 to comply, after appropriate notice, with a subpoena or warrant issued by the  
9 department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families or a county child  
10 support agency under s. 59.53 (5) and related to paternity or child support  
11 proceedings or who is delinquent in making court-ordered payments of child or  
12 family support, maintenance, birth expenses, medical expenses or other expenses  
13 related to the support of a child or former spouse, as provided in a memorandum of  
14 understanding entered into under s. 49.857.

15 **SECTION 770.** 218.0116 (1m) (a) 3. of the statutes is amended to read:

16 218.0116 (1m) (a) 3. The applicant is an individual who fails to comply, after  
17 appropriate notice, with a subpoena or warrant issued by the department of  
18 ~~workforce development~~ children and families or a county child support agency under  
19 s. 59.53 (5) and related to paternity or child support proceedings or who is delinquent  
20 in making court-ordered payments of child or family support, maintenance, birth  
21 expenses, medical expenses or other expenses related to the support of a child or  
22 former spouse, as provided in a memorandum of understanding entered into under  
23 s. 49.857. An applicant whose application is denied under this subdivision is entitled  
24 to a notice and hearing under s. 49.857 but is not entitled to any other notice or  
25 hearing under ss. 218.0101 to 218.0163.



1           **SECTION 771.** 218.0116 (1m) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

2           218.0116 (1m) (b) A license described in s. 218.0114 (16) shall be restricted or  
3           suspended if the licensee is an individual who fails to comply, after appropriate  
4           notice, with a subpoena or warrant issued by the department of ~~workforce~~  
5           ~~development~~ children and families or a county child support agency under s. 59.53  
6           (5) and related to paternity or child support proceedings or who is delinquent in  
7           making court-ordered payments of child or family support, maintenance, birth  
8           expenses, medical expenses or other expenses related to the support of a child or  
9           former spouse, as provided in a memorandum of understanding entered into under  
10          s. 49.857. A licensee whose license is restricted or suspended under this paragraph  
11          is entitled to a notice and hearing under s. 49.857 but is not entitled to any other  
12          notice or hearing under ss. 218.0101 to 218.0163.

13          **SECTION 772.** 218.02 (2) (a) 2. b. of the statutes is amended to read:

14          218.02 (2) (a) 2. b. The division may disclose information under subd. 1. a. to  
15          the department of ~~workforce~~ ~~development~~ children and families in accordance with  
16          a memorandum of understanding under s. 49.857.

17          **SECTION 773.** 218.02 (2) (a) 3. of the statutes is amended to read:

18          218.02 (2) (a) 3. If an applicant who is an individual does not have a social  
19          security number, the applicant, as a condition of applying for or applying to renew  
20          a license under this section, shall submit a statement made or subscribed under oath  
21          or affirmation to the division that the applicant does not have a social security  
22          number. The form of the statement shall be prescribed by the department of  
23          ~~workforce~~ ~~development~~ children and families. Any license issued or renewed in  
24          reliance upon a false statement submitted by an applicant under this subdivision is  
25          invalid.

1           **SECTION 774.** 218.02 (3) (e) of the statutes is amended to read:

2           218.02 (3) (e) That, if the applicant is an individual, the applicant has not failed  
3 to comply, after appropriate notice, with a subpoena or warrant issued by the  
4 department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families or a county child  
5 support agency under s. 59.53 (5) and related to paternity or child support  
6 proceedings and is not delinquent in making court-ordered payments of child or  
7 family support, maintenance, birth expenses, medical expenses or other expenses  
8 related to the support of a child or former spouse, as provided in a memorandum of  
9 understanding entered into under s. 49.857.

10           **SECTION 775.** 218.02 (6) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

11           218.02 (6) (b) In accordance with a memorandum of understanding entered  
12 into under s. 49.857, the division shall restrict or suspend a license if the licensee is  
13 an individual who fails to comply, after appropriate notice, with a subpoena or  
14 warrant issued by the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families  
15 or a county child support agency under s. 59.53 (5) and related to paternity or child  
16 support proceedings or who is delinquent in making court-ordered payments of child  
17 or family support, maintenance, birth expenses, medical expenses or other expenses  
18 related to the support of a child or former spouse.

19           **SECTION 776.** 218.02 (9) (a) 2. of the statutes is amended to read:

20           218.02 (9) (a) 2. Applications for licenses that are denied or licenses that are  
21 restricted or suspended because the applicant or licensee has failed to comply, after  
22 appropriate notice, with a subpoena or warrant issued by the department of  
23 ~~workforce development~~ children and families or a county child support agency under  
24 s. 59.53 (5) and related to paternity or child support proceedings or is delinquent in  
25 making court-ordered payments of child or family support, maintenance, birth

1 expenses, medical expenses or other expenses related to the support of a child or  
2 former spouse.

3 **SECTION 777.** 218.04 (3) (a) 2. b. of the statutes is amended to read:

4 218.04 (3) (a) 2. b. The division may disclose information under subd. 1. a. to  
5 the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families in accordance with  
6 a memorandum of understanding under s. 49.857.

7 **SECTION 778.** 218.04 (3) (a) 3. of the statutes is amended to read:

8 218.04 (3) (a) 3. If an applicant who is an individual does not have a social  
9 security number, the applicant, as a condition of applying for or applying to renew  
10 a license under this section, shall submit a statement made or subscribed under oath  
11 or affirmation to the division that the applicant does not have a social security  
12 number. The form of the statement shall be prescribed by the department of  
13 ~~workforce development~~ children and families. Any license issued or renewed in  
14 reliance upon a false statement submitted by an applicant under this subdivision is  
15 invalid.

16 **SECTION 779.** 218.04 (4) (am) 3. of the statutes is amended to read:

17 218.04 (4) (am) 3. The applicant fails to comply, after appropriate notice, with  
18 a subpoena or warrant issued by the department of ~~workforce development~~ children  
19 and families or a county child support agency under s. 59.53 (5) and related to  
20 paternity or child support proceedings or is delinquent in making court-ordered  
21 payments of child or family support, maintenance, birth expenses, medical expenses  
22 or other expenses related to the support of a child or former spouse, as provided in  
23 a memorandum of understanding entered into under s. 49.857. An applicant whose  
24 application is denied under this subdivision for delinquent payments is entitled to

1 a notice and hearing under s. 49.857 but is not entitled to any other notice or hearing  
2 under this section.

3 **SECTION 780.** 218.04 (5) (am) of the statutes is amended to read:

4 218.04 (5) (am) The division shall restrict or suspend a license issued under  
5 this section if the division finds that the licensee is an individual who fails to comply,  
6 after appropriate notice, with a subpoena or warrant issued by the department of  
7 ~~workforce development~~ children and families or a county child support agency under  
8 s. 59.53 (5) and related to paternity or child support proceedings or who is delinquent  
9 in making court-ordered payments of child or family support, maintenance, birth  
10 expenses, medical expenses or other expenses related to the support of a child or  
11 former spouse, as provided in a memorandum of understanding entered into under  
12 s. 49.857. A licensee whose license is restricted or suspended under this paragraph  
13 is entitled to a notice and hearing only as provided in a memorandum of  
14 understanding entered into under s. 49.857 and is not entitled to any other notice or  
15 hearing under this section.

16 **SECTION 781.** 218.05 (3) (am) 2. b. of the statutes is amended to read:

17 218.05 (3) (am) 2. b. The division may disclose information under subd. 1. a.  
18 to the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families in accordance  
19 with a memorandum of understanding under s. 49.857.

20 **SECTION 782.** 218.05 (3) (am) 3. of the statutes is amended to read:

21 218.05 (3) (am) 3. If an applicant who is an individual does not have a social  
22 security number, the applicant, as a condition of applying for or applying to renew  
23 a license under this section, shall submit a statement made or subscribed under oath  
24 or affirmation to the division that the applicant does not have a social security  
25 number. The form of the statement shall be prescribed by the department of

1 ~~workforce development~~ children and families. Any license issued or renewed in  
2 reliance upon a false statement submitted by an applicant under this subdivision is  
3 invalid.

4 **SECTION 783.** 218.05 (4) (c) 3. of the statutes is amended to read:

5 218.05 (4) (c) 3. The applicant is an individual who fails to comply, after  
6 appropriate notice, with a subpoena or warrant issued by the department of  
7 ~~workforce development~~ children and families or a county child support agency under  
8 s. 59.53 (5) and related to paternity or child support proceedings or who is delinquent  
9 in making court-ordered payments of child or family support, maintenance, birth  
10 expenses, medical expenses or other expenses related to the support of a child or  
11 former spouse, as provided in a memorandum of understanding entered into under  
12 s. 49.857. An applicant whose application is denied under this subdivision for  
13 delinquent payments is entitled to a notice and hearing under s. 49.857 but is not  
14 entitled to any notice or hearing under par. (b).

15 **SECTION 784.** 218.05 (11) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

16 218.05 (11) (c) The renewal applicant is an individual who fails to comply, after  
17 appropriate notice, with a subpoena or warrant issued by the department of  
18 ~~workforce development~~ children and families or a county child support agency under  
19 s. 59.53 (5) and related to paternity or child support proceedings or is delinquent in  
20 making court-ordered payments of child or family support, maintenance, birth  
21 expenses, medical expenses or other expenses related to the support of a child or  
22 former spouse, as provided in a memorandum of understanding entered into under  
23 s. 49.857. An applicant whose application is denied under this subsection for  
24 delinquent payments or failure to comply with a subpoena or warrant is entitled to  
25 a notice and hearing only as provided in a memorandum of understanding entered

1 into under s. 49.857 and is not entitled to any other notice or hearing under this  
2 section.

3 **SECTION 785.** 218.05 (12) (am) of the statutes is amended to read:

4 218.05 (12) (am) The division shall restrict or suspend any license issued under  
5 this section if the licensee is an individual who fails to comply, after appropriate  
6 notice, with a subpoena or warrant issued by the department of ~~workforce~~  
7 development children and families or a county child support agency under s. 59.53  
8 (5) and related to paternity or child support proceedings or who is delinquent in  
9 making court-ordered payments of child or family support, maintenance, birth  
10 expenses, medical expenses or other expenses related to the support of a child or  
11 former spouse, as provided in a memorandum of understanding entered into under  
12 s. 49.857. A licensee whose license is restricted or suspended under this paragraph  
13 is entitled to a notice and hearing only as provided in a memorandum of  
14 understanding entered into under s. 49.857 and is not entitled to any other notice or  
15 hearing under this section.

16 **SECTION 786.** 218.11 (2) (am) 3. of the statutes is amended to read:

17 218.11 (2) (am) 3. The department of commerce may not disclose any  
18 information received under subd. 1. to any person except to the department of  
19 ~~workforce development~~ children and families for purposes of administering s. 49.22  
20 or to the department of revenue for the sole purpose of requesting certifications  
21 under s. 73.0301.

22 **SECTION 787.** 218.11 (2) (am) 4. of the statutes is amended to read:

23 218.11 (2) (am) 4. If an applicant who is an individual does not have a social  
24 security number, the applicant, as a condition of applying for or applying to renew  
25 a license under this section, shall submit a statement made or subscribed under oath

1 or affirmation to the department that the applicant does not have a social security  
2 number. The form of the statement shall be prescribed by the department of  
3 ~~workforce development~~ children and families. Any license issued or renewed in  
4 reliance upon a false statement submitted by an applicant under this subdivision is  
5 invalid.

6 **SECTION 788.** 218.11 (6m) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

7 218.11 **(6m)** (a) A license under this section shall be denied, restricted, limited  
8 or suspended if an applicant or licensee is an individual who is delinquent in making  
9 court-ordered payments of child or family support, maintenance, birth expenses,  
10 medical expenses or other expenses related to the support of a child or former spouse,  
11 or who fails to comply, after appropriate notice, with a subpoena or warrant issued  
12 by the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families or a county child  
13 support agency under s. 59.53 (5) and related to paternity or child support  
14 proceedings, as provided in a memorandum of understanding entered into under s.  
15 49.857.

16 **SECTION 789.** 218.12 (2) (am) 2. of the statutes is amended to read:

17 218.12 **(2)** (am) 2. The department of commerce may not disclose a social  
18 security number obtained under par. (a) to any person except to the department of  
19 ~~workforce development~~ children and families for the sole purpose of administering  
20 s. 49.22 or to the department of revenue for the sole purpose of requesting  
21 certifications under s. 73.0301.

22 **SECTION 790.** 218.12 (2) (am) 3. of the statutes is amended to read:

23 218.12 **(2)** (am) 3. If an applicant does not have a social security number, the  
24 applicant, as a condition of applying for or applying to renew a license under this  
25 section, shall submit a statement made or subscribed under oath or affirmation to

1 the department that the applicant does not have a social security number. The form  
2 of the statement shall be prescribed by the department of ~~workforce development~~  
3 children and families. Any license issued or renewed in reliance upon a false  
4 statement submitted by an applicant under this subdivision is invalid.

5 **SECTION 791.** 218.12 (3m) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

6 218.12 (3m) (a) A license shall be denied, restricted, limited or suspended if the  
7 applicant or licensee is an individual who is delinquent in making court-ordered  
8 payments of child or family support, maintenance, birth expenses, medical expenses  
9 or other expenses related to the support of a child or former spouse, or who fails to  
10 comply, after appropriate notice, with a subpoena or warrant issued by the  
11 department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families or a county child  
12 support agency under s. 59.53 (5) and related to paternity or child support  
13 proceedings, as provided in a memorandum of understanding entered into under s.  
14 49.857.

15 **SECTION 792.** 218.21 (2f) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

16 218.21 (2f) (a) If an applicant who is an individual does not have a social  
17 security number, the applicant, as a condition of applying for or applying to renew  
18 a motor vehicle salvage dealer's license, shall submit a statement made or subscribed  
19 under oath or affirmation to the department that the applicant does not have a social  
20 security number. The form of the statement shall be prescribed by the department  
21 of ~~workforce development~~ children and families.

22 **SECTION 793.** 218.21 (2m) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

23 218.21 (2m) (b) The department of transportation may not disclose any  
24 information received under sub. (2) (ag) or (am) to any person except to the  
25 department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families for purposes of



1 administering s. 49.22 or the department of revenue for the sole purpose of  
2 requesting certifications under s. 73.0301.

3 **SECTION 794.** 218.22 (3m) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

4 218.22 (3m) (a) The department shall deny, restrict, limit or suspend a license  
5 if the applicant or licensee is an individual who is delinquent in making  
6 court-ordered payments of child or family support, maintenance, birth expenses,  
7 medical expenses or other expenses related to the support of a child or former spouse,  
8 or who fails to comply, after appropriate notice, with a subpoena or warrant issued  
9 by the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families or a county child  
10 support agency under s. 59.53 (5) and related to paternity or child support  
11 proceedings, as provided in a memorandum of understanding entered into under s.  
12 49.857.

13 **SECTION 795.** 218.31 (1f) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

14 218.31 (1f) (a) If an applicant who is an individual does not have a social  
15 security number, the applicant, as a condition of applying for or applying to renew  
16 a motor vehicle auction dealer's license, shall submit a statement made or subscribed  
17 under oath or affirmation to the department that the applicant does not have a social  
18 security number. The form of the statement shall be prescribed by the department  
19 of ~~workforce development~~ children and families.

20 **SECTION 796.** 218.31 (1m) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

21 218.31 (1m) (b) The department of transportation may not disclose any  
22 information received under sub. (1) (ag) or (am) to any person except to the  
23 department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families for purposes of  
24 administering s. 49.22 or the department of revenue for the sole purpose of  
25 requesting certifications under s. 73.0301.

1           **SECTION 797.** 218.32 (3m) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

2           218.32 **(3m)** (a) The department shall deny, restrict, limit or suspend a license  
3 if the applicant or licensee is an individual who is delinquent in making  
4 court-ordered payments of child or family support, maintenance, birth expenses,  
5 medical expenses or other expenses related to the support of a child or former spouse,  
6 or who fails to comply, after appropriate notice, with a subpoena or warrant issued  
7 by the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families or a county child  
8 support agency under s. 59.53 (5) and related to paternity or child support  
9 proceedings, as provided in a memorandum of understanding entered into under s.  
10 49.857.

11           **SECTION 798.** 218.41 (2) (am) 2. of the statutes is amended to read:

12           218.41 **(2)** (am) 2. The department of transportation may not disclose any  
13 information received under subd. 1. a. or b. to any person except to the department  
14 of ~~workforce development~~ children and families for the sole purpose of administering  
15 s. 49.22 or the department of revenue for the sole purpose of requesting certifications  
16 under s. 73.0301.

17           **SECTION 799.** 218.41 (2) (am) 3. of the statutes is amended to read:

18           218.41 **(2)** (am) 3. If an applicant who is an individual does not have a social  
19 security number, the applicant, as a condition of applying for or applying to renew  
20 a license under this section, shall submit a statement made or subscribed under oath  
21 or affirmation to the department that the applicant does not have a social security  
22 number. The form of the statement shall be prescribed by the department of  
23 ~~workforce development~~ children and families. Any license issued or renewed in  
24 reliance upon a false statement submitted by an applicant under this subdivision is  
25 invalid.

1           **SECTION 800.** 218.41 (3m) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

2           218.41 **(3m)** (a) A license shall be denied, restricted, limited or suspended if the  
3 applicant or licensee is an individual who is delinquent in making court-ordered  
4 payments of child or family support, maintenance, birth expenses, medical expenses  
5 or other expenses related to the support of a child or former spouse, or who fails to  
6 comply, after appropriate notice, with a subpoena or warrant issued by the  
7 department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families or a county child  
8 support agency under s. 59.53 (5) and related to paternity or child support  
9 proceedings, as provided in a memorandum of understanding entered into under s.  
10 49.857.

11           **SECTION 801.** 218.51 (3) (am) 2. of the statutes is amended to read:

12           218.51 **(3)** (am) 2. The department of transportation may not disclose any  
13 information received under subd. 1. a. or b. to any person except to the department  
14 of ~~workforce development~~ children and families for the sole purpose of administering  
15 s. 49.22 or the department of revenue for the sole purpose of requesting certifications  
16 under s. 73.0301.

17           **SECTION 802.** 218.51 (3) (am) 3. of the statutes is amended to read:

18           218.51 **(3)** (am) 3. If an applicant for the issuance or renewal of a buyer  
19 identification card is an individual who does not have a social security number, the  
20 applicant, as a condition of applying for or applying to renew the buyer identification  
21 card, shall submit a statement made or subscribed under oath or affirmation to the  
22 department that the applicant does not have a social security number. The form of  
23 the statement shall be prescribed by the department of ~~workforce development~~  
24 children and families. Any buyer identification card issued or renewed in reliance  
25 upon a false statement submitted by an applicant under this subdivision is invalid.

1           **SECTION 803.** 218.51 (4m) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

2           218.51 (4m) (a) The department shall deny, restrict, limit or suspend a license  
3 if the applicant or licensee is an individual who is delinquent in making  
4 court-ordered payments of child or family support, maintenance, birth expenses,  
5 medical expenses or other expenses related to the support of a child or former spouse,  
6 or who fails to comply, after appropriate notice, with a subpoena or warrant issued  
7 by the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families or a county child  
8 support agency under s. 59.53 (5) and related to paternity or child support  
9 proceedings, as provided in a memorandum of understanding entered into under s.  
10 49.857.

11           **SECTION 804.** 224.40 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

12           224.40 (2) FINANCIAL RECORD MATCHING AGREEMENTS. A financial institution is  
13 required to enter into an agreement with the department of ~~workforce development~~  
14 children and families in accordance with rules promulgated under s. 49.853 (2).

15           **SECTION 805.** 224.40 (3) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

16           224.40 (3) (b) Disclosing information to the department of ~~workforce~~  
17 ~~development~~ children and families or a county child support agency pursuant to the  
18 financial record matching program under s. 49.853.

19           **SECTION 806.** 224.40 (3) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

20           224.40 (3) (c) Encumbering or surrendering any assets held by the financial  
21 institution in response to instructions provided by the department of ~~workforce~~  
22 ~~development~~ children and families or a county child support agency for the purpose  
23 of enforcing a child support obligation.

24           **SECTION 807.** 224.72 (2) (c) 2. b. of the statutes is amended to read:

1           224.72 (2) (c) 2. b. The department may disclose information under subd. 1. a.  
2 to the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families in accordance  
3 with a memorandum of understanding under s. 49.857.

4           **SECTION 808.** 224.72 (2) (d) 1. of the statutes is amended to read:

5           224.72 (2) (d) 1. If an applicant who is an individual does not have a social  
6 security number, the applicant, as a condition of applying for or applying to renew  
7 a registration under this section, shall submit a statement made or subscribed under  
8 oath or affirmation to the division that the applicant does not have a social security  
9 number. The form of the statement shall be prescribed by the department of  
10 ~~workforce development~~ children and families.

11           **SECTION 809.** 224.72 (7m) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

12           224.72 (7m) (c) The applicant for the issuance or renewal is an individual who  
13 fails to comply, after appropriate notice, with a subpoena or warrant issued by the  
14 department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families or a county child  
15 support agency under s. 59.53 (5) and related to paternity or child support  
16 proceedings or who is delinquent in making court-ordered payments of child or  
17 family support, maintenance, birth expenses, medical expenses or other expenses  
18 related to the support of a child or former spouse, as provided in a memorandum of  
19 understanding entered into under s. 49.857. An applicant whose registration is not  
20 issued or renewed under this paragraph for delinquent payments is entitled to a  
21 notice and hearing under s. 49.857 but is not entitled to any other notice or hearing  
22 under this section.

23           **SECTION 810.** 224.77 (6) of the statutes is amended to read:

24           224.77 (6) RESTRICTION OR SUSPENSION OF REGISTRATION. The department shall  
25 restrict or suspend the registration of a mortgage banker, loan originator or

1 mortgage broker if the registrant is an individual who fails to comply, after  
2 appropriate notice, with a subpoena or warrant issued by the department of  
3 ~~workforce development~~ children and families or a county child support agency under  
4 s. 59.53 (5) and related to paternity or child support proceedings or who is delinquent  
5 in making court-ordered payments of child or family support, maintenance, birth  
6 expenses, medical expenses or other expenses related to the support of a child or  
7 former spouse, as provided in a memorandum of understanding entered into under  
8 s. 49.857. A registrant whose registration is restricted or suspended under this  
9 subsection is entitled to a notice and hearing only as provided in a memorandum of  
10 understanding entered into under s. 49.857 and is not entitled to any other notice or  
11 hearing under this section.

12 **SECTION 811.** 224.927 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

13 224.927 (2) The division may disclose the information to the department of  
14 ~~workforce development~~ children and families in accordance with a memorandum of  
15 understanding under s. 49.857.

16 **SECTION 812.** 224.95 (1) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

17 224.95 (1) (c) The applicant is an individual who has failed to comply, after  
18 appropriate notice, with a subpoena or warrant issued by the department of  
19 ~~workforce development~~ children and families or a county child support agency under  
20 s. 59.53 (5) and related to paternity or child support proceedings or who is delinquent  
21 in making court-ordered payments of child or family support, maintenance, birth  
22 expenses, medical expenses or other expenses related to the support of a child or  
23 former spouse, as provided in a memorandum of understanding entered into under  
24 s. 49.857. An applicant whose application for issuance or renewal of a license is

1 denied under this paragraph is entitled to a notice and a hearing under s. 49.857 but  
2 is not entitled to a notice or hearing under sub. (4).

3 **SECTION 813.** 227.43 (1) (by) of the statutes is amended to read:

4 227.43 (1) (by) Assign a hearing examiner to preside over any hearing of a  
5 contested case that is required to be conducted by the department of ~~workforce~~  
6 development children and families under ch. 48 or subch. III of ch. 49 and that is not  
7 conducted by the secretary of ~~workforce development~~ children and families.

8 **SECTION 814.** 227.43 (2) (d) of the statutes is amended to read:

9 227.43 (2) (d) The department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families  
10 shall notify the division of hearings and appeals of every pending hearing to which  
11 the administrator of the division is required to assign a hearing examiner under sub.  
12 (1) (by) after the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families is  
13 notified that a hearing on the matter is required.

14 **SECTION 815.** 227.43 (3) (d) of the statutes is amended to read:

15 227.43 (3) (d) The administrator of the division of hearings and appeals may  
16 set the fees to be charged for any services rendered to the department of ~~workforce~~  
17 development children and families by a hearing examiner under this section in a  
18 manner consistent with a federally approved allocation methodology. The fees shall  
19 cover the total cost of the services.

20 **SECTION 816.** 227.43 (4) (d) of the statutes is amended to read:

21 227.43 (4) (d) The department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families  
22 shall pay all costs of the services of a hearing examiner, including support services,  
23 assigned under sub. (1) (by), according to the fees set under sub. (3) (d).

24 **SECTION 817.** 227.54 of the statutes is amended to read:

1           **227.54 Stay of proceedings.** The institution of the proceeding for review  
2 shall not stay enforcement of the agency decision. The reviewing court may order a  
3 stay upon such terms as it deems proper, except as otherwise provided in ss. 49.17  
4 (7), 196.43, ~~253.06 (7)~~, 448.02 (9), and 551.62.

5           **SECTION 818.** 230.08 (2) (e) 2m. of the statutes is created to read:

6           230.08 (2) (e) 2m. Children and families — 5.

7           ~~**SECTION 819.** 230.08 (2) (e) 5. of the statutes is amended to read:~~

8           ~~230.08 (2) (e) 5. Health and family services — 6 5.~~

9           **SECTION 820.** 230.08 (2) (e) 6. of the statutes is amended to read:

10           230.08 (2) (e) 6. Workforce development — 7 6.

11           **SECTION 821.** 230.08 (2) (tv) of the statutes is amended to read:

12           230.08 (2) (tv) The director of the office of urban development in the  
13 department of ~~health and family services~~ children and families, appointed under s.  
14 48.48 (16m).

15           **SECTION 822.** 230.13 (3) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

16           230.13 (3) (a) The director and the administrator shall provide to the  
17 department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families or a county child  
18 support agency under s. 59.53 (5) information requested under s. 49.22 (2m) that  
19 would otherwise be closed to the public under this section. Information provided  
20 under this paragraph may only include an individual's name and address, an  
21 individual's employer and financial information related to an individual.

22           **SECTION 823.** 230.147 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

23           230.147 (1) Each appointing authority of an agency with more than 100  
24 authorized permanent full-time equivalent positions shall prepare and implement  
25 a plan of action to employ persons who, at the time determined under sub. (4), receive



1 aid under s. 49.19, or benefits under s. 49.147 (3) to (5), with the goal of making the  
2 ratio of those persons occupying permanent positions in the agency to the total  
3 number of persons occupying permanent positions in the agency equal to the ratio  
4 of the average case load receiving aid under s. 49.19, or benefits under s. 49.147 (3)  
5 to (5), in this state in the previous fiscal year to the average number of persons in the  
6 state civilian labor force in the preceding fiscal year, as determined by the  
7 department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families.

8 **SECTION 824.** 230.147 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

9 230.147 (2) Each appointing authority of an agency with 100 or fewer  
10 authorized permanent full-time equivalent positions is encouraged to employ  
11 persons who, at the time determined under sub. (4), receive aid under s. 49.19, or  
12 benefits under s. 49.147 (3) to (5), to attempt to make the ratio of those persons  
13 occupying permanent positions in the agency to the total number of persons  
14 occupying permanent positions in the agency equal to the ratio of the average case  
15 load receiving aid under s. 49.19, or benefits under s. 49.147 (3) to (5) in this state  
16 in the previous fiscal year to the average number of persons in the state civilian labor  
17 force in the preceding fiscal year, as determined by the department of ~~workforce~~  
18 development children and families.

19 **SECTION 825.** 236.335 of the statutes is amended to read:

20 **236.335 Prohibited subdividing; forfeit.** No lot or parcel in a recorded plat  
21 may be divided, or used if so divided, for purposes of sale or building development if  
22 the resulting lots or parcels do not conform to this chapter, to any applicable  
23 ordinance of the approving authority or to the rules of the department of ~~workforce~~  
24 development commerce under s. 236.13. Any person making or causing such a  
25 division to be made shall forfeit not less than \$100 nor more than \$500 to the

1 approving authority, or to the state if there is a violation of this chapter or the rules  
2 of the department of ~~workforce development~~ commerce.

3 **SECTION 826.** 250.041 (1m) of the statutes is amended to read:

4 250.041 (1m) If an individual who applies for or to renew a registration, license,  
5 certification, approval, permit or certificate under sub. (1) does not have a social  
6 security number, the individual, as a condition of obtaining the registration, license,  
7 certification, approval, permit or certificate, shall submit a statement made or  
8 subscribed under oath or affirmation to the department that the applicant does not  
9 have a social security number. The form of the statement shall be prescribed by the  
10 department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families. A registration, license,  
11 certification, approval, permit or certificate issued or renewed in reliance upon a  
12 false statement submitted under this subsection is invalid.

13 **SECTION 827.** 250.041 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

14 250.041 (2) The department of health and family services may not disclose any  
15 information received under sub. (1) to any person except to the department of  
16 ~~workforce development~~ children and families for the purpose of making  
17 certifications required under s. 49.857.

18 **SECTION 828.** 250.041 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

19 250.041 (3) The department of health and family services shall deny an  
20 application for the issuance or renewal of a registration, license, certification,  
21 approval, permit or certificate specified in sub. (1) or may, under a memorandum of  
22 understanding under s. 49.857 (2), suspend or restrict a registration, license,  
23 certification, approval, permit or certificate specified in sub. (1) if the department of  
24 ~~workforce development~~ children and families certifies under s. 49.857 that the  
25 applicant for or holder of the registration, license, certification, approval, permit or

1 certificate is delinquent in the payment of court-ordered payments of child or family  
2 support, maintenance, birth expenses, medical expenses or other expenses related  
3 to the support of a child or former spouse or fails to comply, after appropriate notice,  
4 with a subpoena or warrant issued by the department of ~~workforce development~~  
5 children and families or a county child support agency under s. 59.53 (5) and related  
6 to paternity or child support proceedings.

7 **SECTION 829.** 252.12 (2) (c) 1. (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

8 252.12 (2) (c) 1. (intro.) From the appropriation under s. 20.435 (3) (5) (md), the  
9 department shall award to applying nonprofit corporations or public agencies up to  
10 \$75,000 in each fiscal year, on a competitive basis, as grants for services to prevent  
11 HIV. Criteria for award of the grants shall include all of the following:

12 **SECTION 830.** 252.241 (1m) of the statutes is amended to read:

13 252.241 (1m) If an individual who applies for or to renew a license under sub.  
14 (1) does not have a social security number, the individual, as a condition of obtaining  
15 the license, shall submit a statement made or subscribed under oath or affirmation  
16 to the department that the applicant does not have a social security number. The  
17 form of the statement shall be prescribed by the department of ~~workforce~~  
18 development children and families. A license issued or renewed in reliance upon a  
19 false statement submitted under this subsection is invalid.

20 **SECTION 831.** 253.06 (title) of the statutes is renumbered 49.17 (title).

21 **SECTION 832.** 253.06 (1) of the statutes is renumbered 49.17 (1).

22 **SECTION 833.** 253.06 (2) of the statutes is renumbered 49.17 (2) and amended  
23 to read:

24 49.17 (2) USE OF FUNDS. From the appropriation under s. 20.435 (5) 20.437 (2)  
25 (em), the department shall supplement the provision of supplemental foods,

1 nutrition education, and other services, including nutritional counseling, to  
2 low-income women, infants, and children who meet the eligibility criteria under the  
3 federal special supplemental food program for women, infants, and children  
4 authorized under 42 USC 1786. To the extent that funds are available under this  
5 section and to the extent that funds are available under 42 USC 1786, the  
6 department shall provide the supplemental food, nutrition education, and other  
7 services authorized under this section and shall administer that provision in every  
8 county. The department may enter into contracts for this purpose.

9 **SECTION 834.** 253.06 (3) of the statutes is renumbered 49.17 (3).

10 **SECTION 835.** 253.06 (3m) of the statutes is renumbered 49.17 (3m).

11 **SECTION 836.** 253.06 (4) of the statutes is renumbered 49.17 (4).

12 **SECTION 837.** 253.06 (5) (title) of the statutes is renumbered 49.17 (5) (title).

13 **SECTION 838.** 253.06 (5) (a) of the statutes is renumbered 49.17 (5) (a).

14 **SECTION 839.** 253.06 (5) (b) of the statutes is renumbered 49.17 (5) (b).

15 **SECTION 840.** 253.06 (5) (c) of the statutes is renumbered 49.17 (5) (c).

16 **SECTION 841.** 253.06 (5) (d) of the statutes is renumbered 49.17 (5) (d).

17 **SECTION 842.** 253.06 (5) (e) of the statutes is renumbered 49.17 (5) (e) and  
18 amended to read:

19 49.17 (5) (e) The suspension or termination of authorization of a vendor or  
20 eligibility of a participant shall be effective beginning on the 15th day after receipt  
21 of the notice of suspension or termination. All forfeitures, recoupments, and  
22 enforcement assessments shall be paid to the department within 15 days after  
23 receipt of notice of assessment or, if the forfeiture, recoupment, or enforcement  
24 assessment is contested under sub. (6), within 10 days after receipt of the final  
25 decision after exhaustion of administrative review, unless the final decision is

1 adverse to the department or unless the final decision is appealed and the decision  
2 is stayed by court order under sub. (7). The department shall remit all forfeitures  
3 paid to the secretary of administration for deposit in the school fund. The  
4 department shall deposit all enforcement assessments in the appropriation under s.  
5 ~~20.435 (1)~~ 20.437 (2) (gr).

6 **SECTION 843.** 253.06 (5) (f) of the statutes is renumbered 49.17 (5) (f).

7 **SECTION 844.** 253.06 (6) of the statutes is renumbered 49.17 (6).

8 **SECTION 845.** 253.06 (7) of the statutes is renumbered 49.17 (7).

9 **SECTION 846.** 253.06 (8) of the statutes is renumbered 49.17 (8).

10 **SECTION 847.** 253.15 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

11 253.15 (2) INFORMATIONAL MATERIALS. The board shall purchase or prepare or  
12 arrange with a nonprofit organization to prepare printed and audiovisual materials  
13 relating to shaken baby syndrome and impacted babies. The materials shall include  
14 information regarding the identification and prevention of shaken baby syndrome  
15 and impacted babies, the grave effects of shaking or throwing on an infant or young  
16 child, appropriate ways to manage crying, fussing, or other causes that can lead a  
17 person to shake or throw an infant or young child, and a discussion of ways to reduce  
18 the risks that can lead a person to shake or throw an infant or young child. The  
19 materials shall be prepared in English, Spanish, and other languages spoken by a  
20 significant number of state residents, as determined by the board. The board shall  
21 make those written and audiovisual materials available to all hospitals, maternity  
22 homes, and nurse-midwives licensed under s. 441.15 that are required to provide or  
23 make available materials to parents under sub. (3) (a) 1., to the department and to  
24 all county departments and nonprofit organizations that are required to provide the  
25 materials to day care providers under sub. (4), and to all school boards and nonprofit

1 organizations that are permitted to provide the materials to pupils in one of grades  
2 5 to 8 and in one of grades 10 to 12 under sub. (5). The board shall also make those  
3 written materials available to all county departments and Indian tribes that are  
4 providing home visitation services under s. ~~46.515~~ 48.983 (4) (b) 1. or 2. and to all  
5 providers of prenatal, postpartum, and young child care coordination services under  
6 s. 49.45 (44). The board may make available the materials required under this  
7 subsection to be made available by making those materials available at no charge on  
8 the board's Internet site.

9 **SECTION 848.** 253.15 (6) of the statutes is amended to read:

10 253.15 (6) INFORMATION TO HOME VISITATION OR CARE COORDINATION SERVICES  
11 RECIPIENTS. A county department or Indian tribe that is providing home visitation  
12 services under s. ~~46.515~~ 48.983 (4) (b) 1. or 2. and a provider of prenatal, postpartum,  
13 and young child care coordination services under s. 49.45 (44) shall provide to a  
14 recipient of those services, without cost, a copy of the written materials purchased  
15 or prepared under sub. (2) and an oral explanation of those materials.

16 **SECTION 849.** 253.15 (7) (e) of the statutes is amended to read:

17 253.15 (7) (e) A county department or Indian tribe that is providing home  
18 visitation services under s. ~~46.515~~ 48.983 (4) (b) 1. or 2. and a provider of prenatal,  
19 postpartum, and young child care coordination services under s. 49.45 (44) is  
20 immune from liability for any damages resulting from any good faith act or omission  
21 in providing or failing to provide the written materials and oral explanation specified  
22 in sub. (6).

23 **SECTION 850.** 253.15 (8) of the statutes is amended to read:

24 253.15 (8) IDENTIFICATION OF SHAKEN OR IMPACTED BABIES. The department of  
25 health and family services shall identify all infants and young children who have

1 shaken baby syndrome or who are impacted babies and all infants and young  
2 children who have died as a result of being shaken or thrown by using the statewide  
3 automated child welfare information system established under s. ~~46.03 (7) (g)~~ s.  
4 ~~46.03 (7g)~~ 48.47 (7g) and child fatality information compiled by the department of  
5 justice. For each infant or young child so identified, the department of health and  
6 family services shall document the age, sex, and other characteristics of the infant  
7 or young child that are relevant to the prevention of shaken baby syndrome and  
8 impacted babies and, if known, the age, sex, employment status, and residence of the  
9 person who shook or threw the infant or young child, the relationship of that person  
10 to the infant or young child, and any other characteristics of that person that are  
11 relevant to the prevention of shaken baby syndrome and impacted babies.

12 **SECTION 851.** 254.115 (1m) of the statutes is amended to read:

13 254.115 (1m) If an individual who applies for or to renew a certification,  
14 certification card or permit under sub. (1) does not have a social security number, the  
15 individual, as a condition of obtaining the certification, certification card or permit,  
16 shall submit a statement made or subscribed under oath or affirmation to the  
17 department that the applicant does not have a social security number. The form of  
18 the statement shall be prescribed by the department of ~~workforce development~~  
19 children and families. A certification, certification card or permit issued or renewed  
20 in reliance upon a false statement submitted under this subsection is invalid.

21 **SECTION 852.** 291.15 (2) (d) of the statutes is amended to read:

22 291.15 (2) (d) *Use of confidential records.* Except as provided under par. (c) and  
23 this paragraph the department or the department of justice may use records and  
24 other information granted confidential status under this subsection only in the  
25 administration and enforcement of this chapter. The department or the department

1 of justice may release for general distribution records and other information granted  
2 confidential status under this subsection if the owner or operator expressly agrees  
3 to the release. The department or the department of justice may release on a limited  
4 basis records and other information granted confidential status under this  
5 subsection if the department or the department of justice is directed to take this  
6 action by a judge or hearing examiner under an order which protects the  
7 confidentiality of the records or other information. The department or the  
8 department of justice may release to the U.S. environmental protection agency or its  
9 authorized representative records and other information granted confidential status  
10 under this subsection if the department or the department of justice includes in each  
11 release of records or other information a request to the U.S. environmental  
12 protection agency or its authorized representative to protect the confidentiality of  
13 the records or other information. The department or the department of justice shall  
14 provide to the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families or a  
15 county child support agency under s. 59.53 (5) the name and address of an individual,  
16 the name and address of the individual's employer and financial information related  
17 to the individual that is contained in records or other information granted  
18 confidential status under this subsection if requested under s. 49.22 (2m) by the  
19 department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families or a county child  
20 support agency under s. 59.53 (5).

21 **SECTION 853.** 299.07 (1) (am) 1. of the statutes is amended to read:

22 299.07 (1) (am) 1. If an individual who applies for the issuance or renewal of  
23 a license, registration or certification specified in par. (a) does not have a social  
24 security number, the department shall require the applicant, as a condition of  
25 issuing or renewing the license, registration or certification, to submit a statement



1 made or subscribed under oath or affirmation that the applicant does not have a  
2 social security number. The statement shall be in the form prescribed by the  
3 department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families.

4 **SECTION 854.** 299.07 (1) (b) 2. of the statutes is amended to read:

5 299.07 (1) (b) 2. If the department is required to obtain the information under  
6 s. 299.08 (1) (a), to the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families  
7 in accordance with a memorandum of understanding under s. 49.857.

8 **SECTION 855.** 299.08 (1) (am) 1. of the statutes is amended to read:

9 299.08 (1) (am) 1. If an individual who applies for the issuance or renewal of  
10 a license, registration or certification specified in par. (a) does not have a social  
11 security number, the department shall require the applicant, as a condition of  
12 issuing or renewing the license, registration or certification, to submit a statement  
13 made or subscribed under oath or affirmation that the applicant does not have a  
14 social security number. The statement shall be in the form prescribed by the  
15 department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families.

16 **SECTION 856.** 299.08 (1) (b) 1. of the statutes is amended to read:

17 299.08 (1) (b) 1. To the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and  
18 families in accordance with a memorandum of understanding under s. 49.857.

19 **SECTION 857.** 299.08 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

20 299.08 (2) The department shall deny an application for the issuance or  
21 renewal of a license, registration or certification specified in sub. (1) (a), or shall  
22 suspend a license, registration or certification specified in sub. (1) (a) for failure to  
23 make court-ordered payments of child or family support, maintenance, birth  
24 expenses, medical expenses or other expenses related to the support of a child or  
25 former spouse or failure to comply, after appropriate notice, with a subpoena or

1 warrant issued by the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families  
2 or a county child support agency under s. 59.53 (5) and relating to paternity or child  
3 support proceedings, as required in a memorandum of understanding under s.  
4 49.857.

5 **SECTION 858.** 301.12 (14) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

6 301.12 (14) (b) Except as provided in par. (c) and subject to par. (cm), liability  
7 of a parent specified in sub. (2) or s. 301.03 (18) for the care and maintenance of the  
8 parent's minor child who has been placed by a court order under s. 938.183, 938.355,  
9 or 938.357 in a residential, nonmedical facility such as a group home, foster home,  
10 treatment foster home, residential care center for children and youth, or juvenile  
11 correctional institution shall be determined by the court by using the percentage  
12 standard established by the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and  
13 families under s. 49.22 (9) and by applying the percentage standard in the manner  
14 established by the department under par. (g).

15 **SECTION 859.** 301.12 (14) (g) of the statutes is amended to read:

16 301.12 (14) (g) For purposes of determining child support under par. (b), the  
17 department shall promulgate rules related to the application of the standard  
18 established by the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families  
19 under s. 49.22 (9) to a child support obligation for the care and maintenance of a child  
20 who is placed by a court order under s. 938.183, 938.355 or 938.357 in a residential,  
21 nonmedical facility. The rules shall take into account the needs of any person,  
22 including dependent children other than the child, whom either parent is legally  
23 obligated to support.

24 **SECTION 860.** 301.26 (4) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

1           301.26 (4) (c) Notwithstanding pars. (a), (b), and (bm), the department of  
2 corrections shall pay, from the appropriation under s. 20.410 (3) (hm), (ho), or (hr),  
3 the costs of care, services, and supplies provided for each person receiving services  
4 under s. 46.057, 48.366, 51.35 (3), 938.183, or 938.34 who was under the  
5 guardianship of the department of ~~health and family services~~ children and families  
6 pursuant to an order under ch. 48 at the time that the person was adjudicated  
7 delinquent.

8           **SECTION 861.** 301.37 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

9           301.37 (1) The department shall fix reasonable standards and regulations for  
10 the design, construction, repair, and maintenance of all houses of correction,  
11 reforestation camps maintained under s. 303.07, jails, as defined in s. 302.30,  
12 extensions of jails under s. 59.54 (14) (g), rehabilitation facilities under s. 59.53 (8),  
13 lockup facilities, as defined in s. 302.30, work camps under s. 303.10, Huber facilities  
14 under s. 303.09, and, after consulting with the department of ~~health and family~~  
15 ~~services~~ children and families, all juvenile detention facilities, with respect to their  
16 adequacy and fitness for the needs which they are to serve.

17           **SECTION 862.** 301.45 (7) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

18           301.45 (7) (a) The department shall maintain information provided under sub.  
19 (2). The department shall keep the information confidential except as provided in  
20 ss. 301.03 (14) and 301.46, except as needed for law enforcement purposes and except  
21 to provide, in response to a request for information under s. 49.22 (2m) made by the  
22 department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families or a county child  
23 support agency under s. 59.53 (5), the name and address of an individual registered  
24 under this section, the name and address of the individual's employer and financial  
25 information related to the individual.

1           **SECTION 863.** 301.45 (9) of the statutes is amended to read:

2           301.45 (9) COOPERATION. The department of health and family services, the  
3 department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families, the department of  
4 transportation and all circuit courts shall cooperate with the department of  
5 corrections in obtaining information under this section.

6           **SECTION 864.** 301.46 (4) (a) 10m. of the statutes is created to read:

7           301.46 (4) (a) 10m. The department children and families.

8           **SECTION 865.** 302.372 (2) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

9           302.372 (2) (b) Before seeking any reimbursement under this section, the  
10 county shall provide a form to be used for determining the financial status of  
11 prisoners. The form shall provide for obtaining the social security number of the  
12 prisoner, the age and marital status of a prisoner, the number and ages of children  
13 of a prisoner, the number and ages of other dependents of a prisoner, the income of  
14 a prisoner, type and value of real estate owned by a prisoner, type and value of  
15 personal property owned by a prisoner, the prisoner's cash and financial institution  
16 accounts, type and value of the prisoner's investments, pensions and annuities and  
17 any other personalty of significant cash value owned by a prisoner. The county shall  
18 use the form whenever investigating the financial status of prisoners. The  
19 information on a completed form is confidential and not open to public inspection or  
20 copying under s. 19.35 (1), except that the county shall provide the name and address  
21 of an individual, the name and address of the individual's employer and financial  
22 information related to the individual from a form completed under this paragraph  
23 in response to a request for information under s. 49.22 (2m) made by the department  
24 of ~~workforce development~~ children and families or a county child support agency  
25 under s. 59.53 (5).

1           **SECTION 866.** 341.51 (4) (an) of the statutes is amended to read:

2           341.51 (4) (an) If the applicant is an individual who does not have a social  
3 security number, a statement made or subscribed under oath or affirmation that the  
4 applicant does not have a social security number. The form of the statement shall  
5 be prescribed by the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families. A  
6 registration that is issued under this section in reliance on a statement submitted  
7 under this paragraph is invalid if the statement is false.

8           **SECTION 867.** 341.51 (4g) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

9           341.51 (4g) (b) The department of transportation may not disclose any  
10 information obtained under sub. (4) (am) or (ar) to any person except to the  
11 department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families for the sole purpose of  
12 administering s. 49.22 or the department of revenue for the sole purpose of  
13 requesting certifications under s. 73.0301.

14           **SECTION 868.** 341.51 (4m) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

15           341.51 (4m) (a) A registration shall be denied, restricted, limited or suspended  
16 if the applicant or licensee is an individual who is delinquent in making  
17 court-ordered payments of child or family support, maintenance, birth expenses,  
18 medical expenses or other expenses related to the support of a child or former spouse,  
19 or who fails to comply, after appropriate notice, with a subpoena or warrant issued  
20 by the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families or a county child  
21 support agency under s. 59.53 (5) and related to paternity or child support  
22 proceedings, as provided in a memorandum of understanding entered into under s.  
23 49.857.

24           **SECTION 869.** 342.06 (1) (eg) of the statutes is amended to read:

1           342.06 (1) (eg) Except as provided in par. (eh), if the applicant is an individual,  
2 the social security number of the applicant. The department of transportation may  
3 not disclose a social security number obtained under this paragraph to any person  
4 except to the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families for the sole  
5 purpose of administering s. 49.22 and to the department of revenue for the purposes  
6 of administering state taxes and collecting debt.

7           **SECTION 870.** 342.06 (1) (eh) of the statutes is amended to read:

8           342.06 (1) (eh) If the applicant does not have a social security number, a  
9 statement made or subscribed under oath or affirmation that the applicant does not  
10 have a social security number. The form of the statement shall be prescribed by the  
11 department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families. A certificate of title  
12 that is issued in reliance on a statement submitted under this paragraph is invalid  
13 if the statement is false.

14           **SECTION 871.** 343.14 (2) (br) of the statutes, as affected by 2007 Wisconsin Act  
15 ... (this act), is amended to read:

16           343.14 (2) (br) If the applicant does not have a social security number, a  
17 statement made or subscribed under oath or affirmation that the applicant does not  
18 have a social security number and is not eligible for a social security number. The  
19 statement shall provide the basis or reason that the applicant is not eligible for a  
20 social security number, as well as any information requested by the department that  
21 may be needed by the department for purposes of verification under s. 343.165 (1)  
22 (c). The form of the statement shall be prescribed by the department, with the  
23 assistance of the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families. A  
24 license that is issued or renewed under s. 343.17 in reliance on a statement  
25 submitted under this paragraph is invalid if the statement is false.

section XXX ↑

2005 Wisconsin Acts  
25 and 59 and

\*\*\*\*NOTE: This is reconciled s. 343.14 (2) (br). This SECTION has been affected by drafts with the following LRB numbers: -1261 and -0003.

FIX COMPONENT

1  
2

**SECTION 872.** 343.14 (2j) of the statutes, as affected by 2007 Wisconsin Act ...  
(this act), is amended to read: repealed and recreated

3  
4  
5  
6  
7  
8

343.14 (2j) Except as otherwise required to administer and enforce this chapter, the department of transportation may not disclose a social security number obtained from an applicant for a license under sub. (2) (bm) to any person except to the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families for the sole purpose of administering s. 49.22 or to the department of revenue for the purposes of administering state taxes and collecting debt.

PLAIN

\*

\*\*\*\*NOTE: This is reconciled s. 343.14 (2j). This SECTION has been affected by drafts with the following LRB numbers: -1261 and -0003. "XXX" in the bill section heading indicates a cross-reference that must be provided in the compiled budget bill to the bill section in LRB-0003 that renumbers s. 343.14

9  
10  
11  
12  
13  
14  
15

**SECTION 873.** 343.305 (6) (e) 2. am. of the statutes is amended to read: (2j)(b) to s.343.14(2j).

343.305 (6) (e) 2. am. In the case of an individual who does not have a social security number, a statement made or subscribed under oath or affirmation that the applicant does not have a social security number. The form of the statement shall be prescribed by the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families. A permit or approval that is issued or renewed under this section in reliance on a statement submitted under this subd. 2. am. is invalid if the statement is false.

16  
17  
18  
19  
20

**SECTION 874.** 343.305 (6) (e) 3. b. of the statutes is amended to read:

343.305 (6) (e) 3. b. The licensor may not disclose any information received under subd. 2. a. or b. except to the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families for purposes of administering s. 49.22 or the department of revenue for the sole purpose of requesting certifications under s. 73.0301.

21

**SECTION 875.** 343.345 of the statutes is amended to read:

**343.345 Restriction, limitation or suspension of operating privilege.**

The department shall restrict, limit or suspend a person's operating privilege if the person is delinquent in making court-ordered payments of child or family support, maintenance, birth expenses, medical expenses or other expenses related to the support of a child or former spouse, or who fails to comply, after appropriate notice, with a subpoena or warrant issued by the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families or a county child support agency under s. 59.53 (5) and related to paternity or child support proceedings, as provided in a memorandum of understanding entered into under s. 49.857.

**SECTION 876.** 343.50 (8) (b) of the statutes, as affected by 2007 Wisconsin Act

... (this act), is amended to read:

section XXX;

343.50 (8) (b) The department may not disclose any record or other information concerning or relating to an applicant or identification card holder to any person other than a court, district attorney, county corporation counsel, city, village or town attorney, law enforcement agency, the applicant or identification card holder or, if the applicant or identification card holder is under 18 years of age, his or her parent or guardian. Except for photographs disclosed to a law enforcement agency under s. 343.237, persons entitled to receive any record or other information under this paragraph shall not disclose the record or other information to other persons or agencies. This paragraph does not prohibit disclosure under par. (c) or the disclosure of a person's name or address, of the name or address of a person's employer or of financial information that relates to a person when requested under s. 49.22 (2m) by the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families or a county child support agency under s. 59.53 (5).



\*\*\*\*NOTE: This is reconciled s. 343.50 (8) (b). This SECTION has been affected by drafts with the following LRB numbers: -0003 and -1261. "XXX" in the bill section heading indicates a cross-reference that must be provided in the compiled budget bill to the bill section in LRB-0003 that also treats

1           **SECTION 877.** 343.61 (2) (a) 1m. of the statutes is amended to read: s. 343.50(8).

2           343.61 (2) (a) 1m. In the case of an individual who does not have a social  
3 security number, a statement made or subscribed under oath or affirmation that the  
4 individual does not have a social security number. The form of the statement shall  
5 be prescribed by the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families. A  
6 license that is issued by the department in reliance on a statement submitted under  
7 this subdivision is invalid if the statement is false.

8           **SECTION 878.** 343.61 (2) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

9           343.61 (2) (b) The department of transportation may not disclose any  
10 information received under par. (a) 1. or 2. to any person except to the department  
11 of ~~workforce development~~ children and families for purposes of administering s.  
12 49.22 or the department of revenue for the sole purpose of requesting certifications  
13 under s. 73.0301.

14           **SECTION 879.** 343.62 (2) (am) of the statutes is amended to read:

15           343.62 (2) (am) If the applicant does not have a social security number, a  
16 statement made or subscribed under oath or affirmation that the applicant does not  
17 have a social security number. The form of the statement shall be prescribed by the  
18 department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families. A license that is issued  
19 by the department in reliance on a statement submitted under this paragraph is  
20 invalid if the statement is false.

21           **SECTION 880.** 343.62 (2) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

22           343.62 (2) (b) The department of transportation may not disclose a social  
23 security number obtained under par. (a) to any person except to the department of

1 ~~workforce development~~ children and families for the sole purpose of administering  
2 s. 49.22 or the department of revenue for the sole purpose of requesting certifications  
3 under s. 73.0301.

4 **SECTION 881.** 343.66 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

5 343.66 (2) The secretary shall deny, restrict, limit or suspend any driver school  
6 license issued under s. 343.61 or instructor's license issued under s. 343.62 or refuse  
7 to renew a driver school license or instructor's license if the applicant or licensee is  
8 an individual who is delinquent in making court-ordered payments of child or family  
9 support, maintenance, birth expenses, medical expenses or other expenses related  
10 to the support of a child or former spouse, or who fails to comply, after appropriate  
11 notice, with a subpoena or warrant issued by the department of ~~workforce~~  
12 ~~development~~ children and families or a county child support agency under s. 59.53  
13 (5) and related to paternity or child support proceedings, as provided in a  
14 memorandum of understanding entered into under s. 49.857.

15 **SECTION 882.** 349.19 of the statutes is amended to read:

16 **349.19 Authority to require accident reports.** Any city, village, town or  
17 county may by ordinance require the operator of a vehicle involved in an accident to  
18 file with a designated municipal department or officer a report of such accident or  
19 a copy of any report required to be filed with the department. All such reports are  
20 for the confidential use of such department or officer and are otherwise subject to s.  
21 346.73, except that this section does not prohibit the disclosure of a person's name  
22 or address, of the name or address of a person's employer or of financial information  
23 that relates to a person when requested under s. 49.22 (2m) to the department of  
24 ~~workforce development~~ children and families or a county child support agency under  
25 under s. 59.53 (5).